[image: image1.png]IVERSITY
- 7VIRGINIA Institutional Review Board for Health Sciences Research
' IRB-HSR






	PROTOCOL VIOLATION AND ENROLLMENT EXCEPTION REPORTING FORM



	INSTRUCTIONS AND INFORMATION

· The Protocol Violations and Enrollment Exception Form must be used to report major protocol violations and enrollment exceptions

· All major protocol violations must be reported to the IRB-HSR immediately upon discovering them, and no later than seven (7) calendar days from the time the study team receives knowledge of the event.   

· The following items are automatically considered major protocol violations regardless of the impact on subject safety or potential risk to subject and must be reported to the IRB :

· all consenting issues (consent not obtained or obtained after study procedures started etc) , 

· dosing errors (wrong dose/wrong subject/ dose reduction/escalation rules not followed), 

· inclusion /exclusion criteria  not followed

· Reporting of minor violations to IRB is not required by the IRB-HSR; however, the sponsor may require the violation to be reported to the IRB, or the study team may feel more comfortable reporting all violations.  
· Some protocol violations may also meet the definition of an unanticipated problem according to OHRP. If the protocol violation is also an unanticipated problem, additional reporting to OHRP by the IRB is required. 
· An enrollment exception is the sponsor’s prospective approval for the enrollment of a research subject that fails to meet current IRB-HSR approved protocol inclusion criteria, or falls under protocol exclusion criteria. Enrollment exceptions only apply to a single individual. Such a request should be rare and justified in terms of serving the best interests of the potential study participant.
· Send one (1)  completed “Protocol Violation or Enrollment Exception Reporting Form” (signed and dated by the PI) and any additional documentation to the IRB-HSR along with an IRB-HSR Routing Form
· If the protocol is approved by the GCRC Advisory Committee send one (1) copy of the form to the GCRC. 

Refer to the “Additional Information” section at the end of this document for criteria regarding major versus minor protocol violations, and unanticipated problems.


	IRB-HSR #:      
	PI Name:      

	Date of Protocol Violation/Enrollment Exception:      
	Subject ID #:      


	1.
	Are you reporting an Enrollment Exception?  

You may only check yes if you have a sponsor that is someone other than the PI
If Yes, and you are not reporting a protocol violation as well, please attach documentation from the sponsor regarding the Enrollment Exception. YOU DO NOT HAVE TO COMPLETE ANY ADDITIONAL SECTIONS OF THIS FORM.   PLEASE SIGN AND DATE THIS FORM.
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes    FORMCHECKBOX 
 No

	2.
	Are you reporting a protocol violation?

If yes, indicate type of protocol violation.  Refer to the “Additional Information” section at the end of this document if you are unsure about whether or not the violation(s) being reported is/are major or minor. 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes    FORMCHECKBOX 
 No
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Minor Violation

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Major Violation

	3.
	If you are reporting a protocol violation, answer the questions below.

	
	3a.
	Indicate the nature of the violation -check all that apply:   
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Failure to obtain research consent (no consent documentation present for subject.) 

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Enrollment of subject who did not meet all inclusion/exclusion criteria (with no enrollment exception granted)
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Screening or on-study procedure/lab work required to ensure safety not done 

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Screening or on-study procedure/lab work required to ensure safety done outside the protocol required time window

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Study procedure NOT previously approved by the IRB was performed:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Incorrect research treatment or intervention given to subject 

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Standard Operating Procedures, Principles of Good Clinical Practice, local, state or federal  regulations not met
 FORMCHECKBOX 
  Other (specify):       

	
	3b.
	Describe the violation fully.  How did the violation happen?  What occurred? 
     

	
	3c.
	Explain the reason the violation occurred.  Why did this violation occur? What circumstances led to this event?       

	
	3d.
	What was done in response to the violation occurring? What corrective/preventative actions have been taken by the study team?  Check all that apply
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Protocol and/or consent modification    If YES, attach modification documents using the standard procedure described on the IRB-HSR Website.
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Subject(s) will reconsent

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Additional Training (describe):      
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Policy changes (describe):      
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other (describe):      

	
	3e.
	Will the participant(s) continue with the research? 
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes    FORMCHECKBOX 
 No



	
	3f.
	Does this protocol violation meet the criteria for an Unanticipated Problem? 
An unanticipated problem is any event, experience, issue, instance, problem, or outcome that meets all 3 of the following criteria: 

· Unexpected in terms of nature, severity or frequency given the research procedures that are described in the protocol –related documents AND the characteristics of the subject population being studied. 

· Related or possibly related to participation in the research.  This means that there is a reasonable possibility that the incident, experience or outcome may have been caused by the procedures involved in the research study.

· The event, experience, issue, instance, problem or outcome suggests that the research places the subject or others at greater risk of harm that was previously known or recognized OR results in the subject or others actually incurring harm 
If Yes, the IRB-HSR is required by 45 CFR 46.103(a) to report the problem to OHRP, institutional officials, and funding institutions (if  funded by DHHS).

	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes    FORMCHECKBOX 
 No



	
	3g.
	Does the protocol violation involve a data breach? 

A data breach is defined in the HITECH Act (43 USC 17932) as an unauthorized acquisition, access, or use of protected health information (PHI) that compromises the security or privacy of such information.

For additional information and examples see the IRB-HSR Website
If YES, do you confirm you have reported the Data Breach to all applicable parties per the IRB-HSR website and your study protocol   (Data and Safety Monitoring Plan Section)?  ( e.g. UVa Corporate Compliance & Privacy Office, ITS and or UVa police department)
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes    FORMCHECKBOX 
 No

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Yes    FORMCHECKBOX 
 No

	4.
	Principal Investigator signature section

	
	PI Name (Print):       
PI Signature: 
	Date:      


Submitted by:      








	FOR IRB-HSR review ONLY:  (check all that apply)
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Protocol violation does NOT meet the criteria of serious or continuing non-compliance

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Protocol violation does  meet the criteria of serious or continuing non-compliance

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Protocol violation is NOT considered an Unanticipated Problem.

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Protocol violation is considered an Unanticipated Problem. 

Note to staff:  see AG 4-1 for additional guidance on Unanticipated problems

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 YES  FORMCHECKBOX 
 NO  Does this protocol still satisfy the requirements for IRB approval  under HHS regulations at 45CFR 46.111?

(1)Risks to subjects are minimized: (i) By using procedures which are consistent with sound research design and which do not unnecessarily expose subjects to risk, and (ii) whenever appropriate, by using procedures already being performed on the subjects for diagnostic or treatment purposes.

(2) Risks to subjects are reasonable in relation to anticipated benefits, if any, to subjects, and the importance of the knowledge that may reasonably be expected to result. (3) Selection of subjects is equitable. 

(4) Informed consent will be sought from each prospective subject or the subject's legally authorized representative, in accordance with, and to the extent required by 45CFR46.116.

(5) Informed consent will be appropriately documented, in accordance with, and to the extent required by 45CRF 46.117.

(6) When appropriate, the research plan makes adequate provision for monitoring the data collected to ensure the safety of subjects.

(7) When appropriate, there are adequate provisions to protect the privacy of subjects and to maintain the confidentiality of data.

If NO, specify in the next section what modifications are required by the IRB.

Actions Required by IRB-HSR:

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 No additional action required

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 IRB must report this event to OHRP, FDA ( if applicable)institutional officials, and funding sources (if DHHS) if the event meets the criteria of an unanticipated problem, serious or continuing non-compliance or if the IRB suspends or terminates the study.  (see AG 2-7)  

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Study team must report this event to the sponsor.

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Modification to the protocol/consent are required (specify): _____________________________________________________________________________________
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Request further information specify):__________________________________________________________________________
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Request PAM review.

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Request additional study team training (specify):  __________________________________________
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Increase the frequency of continuing review______________________________________________
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 Other IRB actions:  (specify):________________________________________________________________

IRB-HSR Administrative Reviewer:________________________________________  Date:__________

IRB-HSR Chair/Vice Chair:_______________________________________________Date:  _________




ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Protocol Violations

A protocol violation is defined as any change, deviation, or departure from the study design or procedures of  research project that is NOT approved by the IRB-HSR prior to its initiation or implementation, OR deviation from standard operating procedures, Good Clinical Practices (GCPs), federal, state or local regulations. These protocol violations may be major or minor violations.  

Major Protocol Violation
A major violation is a protocol violation that meets ANY of the following criteria:

· Represent a serious* failure on the part of the study team to comply with the protocol, standard operating procedures, GCPS, federal, state or local regulations.  The violation may not be intentional.

· Represents a continuing** failure on the part of the study team to comply with the protocol, standard operating procedures, GCPS, federal, state or local regulations.  The violation may not be intentional.

· Impact subject safety or alters risks to subjects.  Note the violation may or may not result in actual harm to the subjects.  Risk or actual harm may be clinical, emotional social, financial, etc. 

· Significantly damages the completeness, accuracy and reliability of the data collected for the study

· May or may not be under control of the investigator/study team/ UVa staff

*Serious failure to comply is noncompliance that adversely affects the rights and welfare of participants or places participants at increased risk of harm. This may be intentional or accidental on the part of the investigator.   **Continuing failure to comply is a pattern of noncompliance that indicates an unwillingness to comply or a lack of knowledge that may lead to an adverse effect on the rights and welfare of participants or may place participants at an increased risk of harm.  

Examples of MAJOR violations may include, but are not limited to:

· There is evidence of willful or knowing misconduct on the part of the investigator(s), or study team 

· Failure to obtain informed consent, i.e., there is no documentation of informed consent, or informed consent is obtained after initiation of study procedures.  

· Enrollment of a subject who did not meet all inclusion/exclusion criteria which would affect subject safety or would negatively impact data integrity

· Performing study procedure not approved by the IRB-HSR 

· Failure to report serious unanticipated problems/adverse events to the IRB-HSR and (if applicable), the sponsor 

· Failure to perform study procedures outlined in the protocol where subject safety or data integrity may be negatively impacted. (Ex. Safety labs not done per protocol)

· Drug/study medication dispensing or dosing error

· Subject dosing error that results in a serious adverse event 

· Study visit or procedure conducted outside of required time frame that may negatively affect subject safety

· Failure to follow Data Safety Monitoring Plan 

· Subject visit/procedure falls outside of the window of time indicated by the protocol resulting in increased potential for risk to the subject or any damage to the integrity or completeness of the data.

· Subject visit/procedure is not done per protocol resulting in increased potential for risk to the subject or any damage to the integrity or completeness of the data.
· Implementation of unapproved recruitment procedures (that would not have been approved by IRB-HSR if submitted according to the recruitment procedures)

Minor Protocol Violations

A minor violation (also called a protocol deviation) is a protocol violation that meets the following criteria:

· Does NOT represent a serious* failure on the part of the study team to comply with the protocol, standard operating procedures, GCPs, federal, state or local regulations.

· Does NOT represent a continuing** failure on the part of the study team to comply with the protocol, standard operating procedures, GCPs, federal, state or local regulations.

· Does NOT  impact subject safety or substantially alter potential risks to subjects(Note risk can be clinical, emotional, social, financial, etc)

· Does NOT result in actual harm 

· Does NOT significantly damage the completeness, accuracy and reliability of the data collected for the study

· May or may not be under the control of the investigator/study team/ UVa staff 

*Serious failure to comply is noncompliance that adversely affects the rights and welfare of participants or places participants at increased risk of harm. This may be intentional or accidental on the part of the investigator

**Continuing failure to comply is a pattern of noncompliance that indicates an unwillingness to comply or a lack of knowledge that may lead to an adverse effect on the rights and welfare of participants or may place participants at an increased risk of harm,  

Examples of minor violations may include, but are not limited to:


· Implementation of unapproved recruitment procedures (that would have been approved by IRB-HSR if submitted according to the recruitment procedures)

· Missing original signed and dated consent form (only a photocopy available)

· Missing pages of executed consent form

· Inappropriate documentation of informed consent, including: 

· Missing subject signature; however source documents indicate the subject voluntarily signed the consent form. 
· missing investigator signature/missing subject/parent signatures 
· copy not given to the person signing the form 
· someone other than the subject dated the consent form
· individual obtaining informed consent not listed on IRB-HSR approved key personnel list
· Use of invalid consent form, i.e. consent form without IRB-HSR approval stamp, or outdated/expired consent form (unless there was a change in the risks of the study as described in the consent form)

· Failure to follow the approved study procedure that does not affect subject safety or data integrity 

· Study procedure conducted out of sequence 

· Omitting an approved portion of the protocol 

· Failure to perform a required lab test  for efficacy (missing safety labs are considered a major protocol violation) 

· Missing lab results 

· Study visit conducted outside of required timeframe

· Enrollment of more subjects than number approved by IRB

· Subject visit/procedure falls outside of the window of time indicated by the protocol and there is no increased potential for risk to the subject or any damage to the integrity or completeness of the data.

· Subject visit/procedure is not done per protocol and there is no increased potential for risk to the subject or any damage to the integrity or completeness of the data

Unanticipated Problems 

An unanticipated problem is any event, experience, issue, instance, problem, or outcome that meets all 3 of the following criteria: 

· Unexpected in terms of nature, severity or frequency given the research procedures that are described in the protocol –related documents AND the characteristics of the subject population being studied. 

· Related or possibly related to participation in the research.  This means that there is a reasonable possibility that the incident, experience or outcome may have been caused by the procedures involved in the research study.

· The event, experience, issue, instance, problem or outcome suggests that the research places the subject or others at greater risk of harm that was previously known or recognized OR results in the subject or others actually incurring harm 
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